



Urban Montessori Charter School

Minutes

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time

Thursday January 27, 2022 at 6:15 PM

Location

4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619. Signage on campus will direct you to the correct room, generally the Sun Room.

The public may comment and participate <u>via Zoom</u> if they prefer. The public may also email comments to board@urbanmontessori.org to be shared by the Board's Secretary during the meeting. Please make that intention clear in your email.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5102904005?pwd=M1kxU2hXSzRSN1dCL3QwYVEzdkJ3Zz09

Meeting ID: 510 290 4005; Passcode 5102904005

Additional teleconference locations: 1623 Sunhill Ct, Martinez, CA 94553; 3125 School Street, Oakland, CA 94602; 5701 Oak Grove Ave, Oakland, CA 94618; 3921 Enos Ave Oakland, 94619

This meeting will be audio recorded. The public can find documents related to this agenda either linked directly on the agenda or under "Other files" after selecting the meeting in BoardOnTrack prior to viewing the agenda. Downloading the "packet" may not include all of the "Other files" that are still otherwise available to the public.

Members: Jan Faraguna, Kara Fortuna, Christina Greenberg, Greg Klein, Davis Leung, Sarah Morrill, Maru Salazar

Urban Montessori Charter School welcomes your participation at Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of the organization

in public. Your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our school and assists the Board in making the best decisions for our school. To assist you in the ease of speaking/participating in our meetings, guidelines are provided at the bottom of this agenda. All materials for all board and committee meetings, including audio recordings of Regular Board Meetings, are available on our <u>BoardOnTrack public portal</u> and also through the <u>UMCS School</u> <u>Calendar</u>.

Directors Present

D. Leung (remote), G. Klein, J. Faraguna (remote), K. Fortuna, M. Salazar (remote), S. Morrill (remote)

Directors Absent

C. Greenberg

Directors who arrived after the meeting opened

S. Morrill

Directors who left before the meeting adjourned

S. Morrill

Guests Present

K. Feeney

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

D. Leung called a meeting of the board of directors of Urban Montessori Charter School to order on Thursday Jan 27, 2022 at 6:15 PM.

B. Record Attendance

C. Review of Action/Discussion Items

No changes needed.

D. Board and Community Appreciations

Kara appreciated our staff, teachers, and everyone who has worked so hard to keep school open this month for in-person instruction. Echoed by Jan.

Jan also appreciated vaccines.

Maru appreciated how smooth it was to pick-up the at-home rapid tests.

Greg appreciated Mr. Bradley for hosting an older student helping a younger student.

Krishna gave a huge appreciation to staff for stretching and covering to help keep school open, and also to Daniel who helped lead in classrooms, too.

Daniel echoed the appreciation for teachers and encouraged us all to reach out and share our appreciation directly with them all.

E. Board Member Comment

There were no board comments on items not on the agenda.

F. Presentations from the Floor

Parent Donald wanted to know who he could reach out to about supporting with parking/traffic. Krishna will connect him.

No other public comments on items not on the agenda.

II. Head of School Report

A. Head of School Report

Krishna started the Head of School (on the agenda / in the packet) with upcoming events, including testing and parent workshops.

[pause in the meeting at 6:28pm to fix simultaneous translation, reconvened at 6:42pm with it working correctly. Greg recalled the role, and Maru, Kara, Greg, Davis, Jan, & Sarah were present.]

Daniel shared instructional updates, including all the work to keep the school open in January for in-person. Many staffing challenges, including Daniel working directly in classrooms most days since Winter Break. This has meant less teacher coaching in January.

NWEA and DIBELS assessments are going on. May extend the NWEA assessment window as student absences have increased during the surge. Classroom teachers began using Checklists from National Center for Montessori in the Public Sector aligned to Common Core that are clear on what students need to know at the end of each Level before transitioning at the end of this school year.

The Middle School restructure began in January with an updated schedule, time spent by grade-level, new curricular resources in math, science, and language arts and increased PE.

Daniel shared a classroom picture from each level.

Krishna shared enrollment seasons updates -- applications are due February 4th, 2022. 201 applications so far.

Krishna shared updates about OUSD's student COVID-19 vaccine mandate. The mandate remains in effect and applies to some students at UMCS, and enforcement of the mandate has been extended until August 2022.

Krishna shared staffing updates, including Ms. Sage transitioning out in December and that Ms. Katie is now doing Specialized Academic Instruction for TK-4th grade students with IEPs and working with ELD students who scored 1-2 on ELPAC. Coach Woo also started teaching PE this month.

Hiring for positions for next year, collecting applications already. Scheduling annual midyear 1:1 check-ins with all staff now as well.

Jan asked about the ability to hire additional "buffer" staff for the future to help cover staff absences.

S. Morrill left at 6:56 PM.

Krishna responded that we do have one substitute and do expect to bring on another sub next month -- but not ready to share more about that at this moment. Krishna shared that this is a very difficult time to be an educator and that's why it's important to check-in with all staff and start early.

Maru asked about the curriculum changes in Middle School. Daniel shared that the Montessori model for Middle School has more traditional aspects than other levels -- you see fewer of those Montessori materials in the middle school program, though some math materials can carry over. The new structure helps the teachers prepare for specific courses they are each teaching.

Kara asked how Amplify supports differentiation within a grade-level. Daniel shared that the lessons are designed with built-in differentiation materials, including for students with different learning needs.

Greg commented that applying for the lottery is free and new this year is that TK students need to turn 5 by February 2nd.

Davis asked about enforcement in August for the vaccine mandate. And Krishna responded that she expects the mandate to be in full effect before the 2022-2023 school year begins, per the State of California.

Maria N. parent asked about vaccination mandates. Krishna responded that the school does not mandate any vaccines, only follows the rules set from the State of California and OUSD.

S. Morrill arrived at 7:05 PM.

There were no other questions or public comments on this item.

III. Finance Committee

A. Discussion Item - Committee Report, including year to date financial report

Greg shared the Finance Committee's report. Latest year to date forecast is as of 12/31/2021. Previous forecast was \$91k one-time deficit. Current forecast is a \$177k one-time deficit. The forecast change is primarily due to a reduction in expected LCFF revenue, which is in turn caused by a reduction in attendance (primarily due to Covid). As discussed previously, we are investing to maintain our classrooms and class sizes, particularly in Primary. The current forecasted fund balance fell from 29.2% of expenses to 27.2% of expenses, which is still well above the "gold standard" of 20%. Our monthly cash flow projection remains healthy through the rest of the fiscal (school) year. Our "P-1" enrollment was 349, and we are currently a few students higher enrolled than that now.

Jan had a question about the negative adjustment to compensation and benefits. Krishna responded that it is in hopeful anticipation that we will be able to hire addition support staff.

No other questions or public comments on the year to date financials.

B. Discussion of Governor's January Budget Proposal

Greg shared an update on the Governor's January budget proposal. The proposal includes building from the current Expanded Learning Opportunity Grant (ELO-G), to the the expanded ELO Program (ELO-P). 9 hours of instruction would be required per day as well as 30 more days of instruction throughout the year. If passed, this will eventually have to be offered to all students contributing to a school's unduplicated count.

The Governor also proposed a ~5% increase in COLA funding for next year, which would amount to an additional \$100k and an increase in Special Education funding. TK, meals, early literacy were some other areas that were mentioned as possibilities for additional funding. This budget will be refined over the next couple of months, and the Governor will release a revise in May, and then the state budget is (hopefully) adopted in June.

A question from parent Maria N. was why ELOP funds are being allocated only to Unduplicated Students.

Greg's response was to explain unduplicated and that the state has a long history of allocating funds to schools that need more help or students that are most in need.

Sarah had a question about LCFF. The first was about ADA options. Greg responded that there are different rules for traditional districts and for charter run schools when it comes to calculating funding based on ADA. The budget proposal was also looking at easing the impact on COVID-driven attendance issues.

Maria had a comment about the deficit this year and how that deficit impacts teaching going forward. Greg responded that the deficit is for this year. UMCS decided not to consolidate a primary classroom, because we wanted to keep those teachers for future years, as we believe those classrooms will be full going forward, and it is hard to replace those teachers. Our latest multiyear budget forecasts do not show any on-going deficits.

No other questions or public comments.

C. Vote to Accept Financial Audits for 2020-2021

G. Klein made a motion to accept the both the regular and Measure G1 audits.

J. Faraguna seconded the motion.

Greg shared that the school received its regular 2020-2021 financial audit, and it's 2020-2021 Measure G1 audit and there were no findings for either one.

There were no questions or public comments. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

G. Klein	Aye
D. Leung	Aye
C. Greenberg	Absent
M. Salazar	Aye
S. Morrill	Aye
J. Faraguna	Aye
K. Fortuna	Aye

D. Vote on in-lieu of Proposition 39 lease at 4551 Steele Street

G. Klein made a motion to Approve the in-lieu of Prop 39 lease with OUSD.

K. Fortuna seconded the motion.

Greg shared that our current lease ends at the end of this year. The new lease would run through the end of June 2024. Oakland school board approved this lease at their meeting that began on January 26th.

There were no questions or public comments. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

D. Leung Aye S. Morrill Aye Roll CallC. GreenbergAbsentJ. FaragunaAyeG. KleinAyeK. FortunaAyeM. SalazarAye

IV. Academic Oversight Committee

A. Discussion Item - Committee Report

Jan shared an oral report of the committee's work. There was a discussion about student attendance, low because of the recent surge, and also staff attendance challenges, too. Looking forward to reviewing assessment data from midyear in February (maybe March), along with Panorama student, family, and staff survey data. Also discussed the middle school structure changes.

Maru asked about the learning impact of low absences, and also asked about excused vs unexcused absences. Greg responded that for finances and for the kid learning in-person that day, the kind of absence doesn't matter. Jan responded that the committee is eager to see the midyear assessment data to see how students have grown, how they compare with where they were in other times. Daniel shared that despite all the challenges, clear evidence of increased lessons, structures, and supports for students to help stay on pace with Montessori curriculum and standards. Definitely a concern when there lots of absences and missing lessons. Montessori model of small group lessons help get students back into their flow when they return from an absence.

Krishna responded that our student information system sends automatic messages and (eventually) letters when students are absent or tardy. Some of that communication is required by the state and the school is focused on helping and supporting students get to school as much as possible.

No other questions or comments on this item.

V. Family Advisory Council

A. Discussion Item - Committee Report

Kara shared the FAC report for this month. Met twice since the last board meeting, variety of attendees and new families. Recent events included teacher luncheon and campus beautification. Upcoming events include next week's Great Kindness Challenge and Spirit Week, family meetings with Dr. Rachelle Rogers-Ard, plant sale, and the May Spring Moveathon. Recent online auction raised over \$7000.

Greg commented that the FAC feels like it's flowing again. Kara shared a major appreciation for Sita's leadership.

No other questions or public comments.

VI. Executive & Governance Committee

A. Discussion Item: Committee Updates, including candidates for board service, Form 700, and training

Greg shared the committee's report. The committee discussed the latest information related to OUSD's COVID vaccine mandate for students. Also discussed the Head of School's evaluation process. We will be opening the self-evaluation portion of the evaluation shortly. Opportunities for input from teachers and staff has occurred and continue.

We will need to schedule annual Brown Act and Conflict of Interest training. Board members are supposed to complete training annually.

Reminder to fill out Form 700. Send it to Ms Rosie.

New Board members need to be fingerprinted if not already completed and can follow up with Ms. Krishna for more information on how to do that.

Greg shared that we are in the midst of preparing a material revision to our charter. The revision is required by the County due to slightly lower than expected enrollment this school year -- a state-wide trend. Multiple Alameda County-authorized charter schools will submit revisions for this same reason. Our legal counsel is helping us prepare the documents and our financial support team is helping us with up-to-date enrollment and budget documentation.

We will need to call a special meeting to approve this revised charter prior to our next regular board meeting.

No questions or public comment on this item.

B. Board and committee officers and members

No action taken.

Parent Donald commented his interested in joining the board. Greg will reach out to do a one-on-one.

VII. Other Business

A. Oakland and California Updates

Greg shared a few updates. California budget proposal updates were covered earlier during the Finance Committee report.

In Oakland, there was news and social media posts about school closures, consolidations, and mergers. There is the possibility of OUSD closing multiple district-run schools. No official set of specific recommendations from OUSD staff has been made public. Meetings are planned for the next two weeks, OUSD may vote before our next regular board meeting.

OUSD is also continuing to do work around their budget. Last night, they passed a resolution to reduce their budget by ~\$40 million for next school year.

No questions or public comment on this item.

B. Approve Minutes from December 2, 2021 Regular Meeting

J. Faraguna made a motion to approve the minutes from Regular Board Meeting on 12-02-21.

D. Leung seconded the motion.

No questions or comments on this item.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- G. Klein Aye D. Leung Aye
- J. Faraguna Aye
- M. Salazar Aye
- C. Greenberg Absent
- K. Fortuna Aye
- S. Morrill Aye

C. Action Item - Vote on General Consent Report

G. Klein made a motion to approve the General Consent Report.

D. Leung seconded the motion.

Jan asked about updates to the Safety Plan. Greg clarified the updates about rapid testing.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- K. Fortuna Aye
- G. Klein Aye
- C. Greenberg Absent
- S. Morrill Aye
- D. Leung Aye
- M. Salazar Aye
- J. Faraguna Aye

D. Collect New Business items for Future Meetings

Davis asked for any new items for future meetings. Greg mentioned that draft agendas can now be made viewable to the public well ahead of time so they can request items to the Chair if they want to.

Maru reminded us to ensure we enable language translation in Zoom for all board/committee meetings moving forward.

VIII. Closed Session

A. Closed Session Items

At 8:11pm Davis announced that the board would go into closed session about Public Employee Performance Evaluation - Head of School. There were no public comments on this item.

IX. Return to Open Session

A. Report out of any closed session action(s)

The board returned to open session at 8:29pm. No actions were taken.

X. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:29 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, G. Klein

Documents used during the meeting

- · January 2022 HoS Board Report.pdf
- UMCS_-_December_2021_Cash_Flow_FC_Meeting.pdf
- UMCS_-_December_2021_FC_Meeting.pdf
- UMCS_-_December_2021_Financials_FC_Meeting.pdf
- UMCS Audit for 2020-2021.pdf.pdf
- UMCS Measure G1 Audit 2020-2021.pdf
- Urban Montessori FUA 22-24.pdf

• 2022-1-27 FAC Board Report.pptx.pdf

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY The Governing Board's presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS MAY BE MADE Notice is hereby given that, consistent with the requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, special presentations not mentioned in the agenda may be made at this meeting. However, any such presentation will be for information only.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting UMCS at 4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619 or info@urbanmontessori.org.

FOR MORE INFORMATION For more information concerning this agenda or for materials relating to this meeting, please contact UMCS at 4551 Steele Street, Oakland, CA 94619 or board@urbanmontessori.org. All materials are available via the Governance Section of our website: <u>http://www.urbanmontessori.org/governance</u> or directly via our <u>BoardOnTrack public</u> <u>portal</u>.